Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D. Paul K. Leather
Commissioner of Education Deputy Commissioner
Tel. 603-271-3144 Tel. 603-271-3801

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9900

September 14, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education to retroactively exercise a renewal option to a

sole source contract with the New Hampshire College and University Council, Concord, NH (Vendor Code

#154469) by increasing the price limitation in the amount of $135,000 from $131,924 to $266,924,

effective upon Governor and Council approval for the period of October 1, 2016 through September 30,

2017 to expand professional development opportunities and improve teacher quality for secondary
teachers and counselors regarding academic rigor and promotion of STEM {(science, technology,
engineering, and mathematics) studies, to promote high school student career and college-readiness

through participation in a rigorous high school curriculum; and to encourage enrollment in postsecondary

STEM studies. This contract was originally approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2015, (Item

#67). 100% Other Funds (Higher Education Institutional Fees)
Funding is available in the account titled Administration Fees as follows:

FY 2017
06-56-56-566510-67770000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $135,000.00

EXPLANATION

This is retroactive as the Attorney General recognized a section in the contract that did not align with RSA

189:65, Vil {e), Student and Teacher Information Protection and Privacy. This required the documents to be

updated and returned to the vendor for signature. This is a sole source contract as the New Hampshire
College and University Council was identified as a grant recipient when the New Hampshire Department of
Education, Division of Higher Education applied for the College Access Challenge Grant, which increases the

rigor of the curriculum taken by students so they are better prepared for college and career success. The New

Hampshire College and University Council is contributing an additional $65,000 in funding towards this
initiative to achieve positive program outcomes.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
And the Honorable Council
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The New Hampshire College and University Council program builds upon an existing infrastructure to deliver
programming, resources and direct services to increase access to postsecondary education for under-
represented students. It is part of a nationwide collaboration of similar efforts often titled “Scholars”
programs.

The New Hampshire College and University Council has three initiatives that must be accomplished under this
contract: 1) providing professional development opportunities for secondary teachers, principals, and
guidance personnel regarding academic rigor, including STEM, to enhance college enroliment rates; 2)
improving secondary teacher training to promote student participation in STEM studies, in career college-
ready preparation, and academic rigor; and 3) enhancing tools currently available for schools and secondary
teachers that encourage education beyond high school, thus increasing the number of students enrolling in
STEM post-secondary education.

in the event that Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to fund this
project.

Respectfully submitted by,

Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Education
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AMENDMENT TO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Division of Higher Education, hereinafter “the
Agency,” and the NH College & University Council, Concord, NH , hereinafter “the Contractor”, and, pursuant to
an agreement between the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on August 26, 2015 (Item #67)
hereby agree to modify same as follows:

1. Agreement-General Provision, Section 1.6 Account Number - remove Account Number 06-56-56-564510-
62040000-073-500583. Account number 06-56-56-566510-67770000-102-500731 shall remain as the
funding source.

2. Agreement-General Provisions, Section 1.7 Completion Date be changed from September 30, 2016 to
September 30, 2017.

3. Agreement-General Provisions, Section 1.8 Price Limitation be increased by $135,000 from $131,924 to
$266,924.

4. Remove FY16 Exhibit A, Scope of Services and replace with FY17 Exhibit A-1, Scope of Services.

5. Remove FY16 Exhibit B, Budget and replace with FY'17 Exhibit B-1, Budget.

6. All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

7. This amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval for the period of September 30,

2016 to September 30, 2017.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the
parties and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education

(Agency)

Division of __ Higher Education

By._{y/ A dx /a’m 7//{7/@
Commissioner of Educdlion Date

NH College & University Council

Name ofﬁforation (Contractor)
By: : E /?{é‘z,,. 7/%»4’7/
Signature, TW / Date

On this the] Y4+ day of jgﬂ(_&ri 2016 before me, lD a ﬁk;{g N- EC@S ,the undersigned officer,

STATE OF _Néw Hnmpsh/ré,

County of M errimacts

personally appeared Thomas K. Horgan who acknowledged himself/herself to be the
# President of a corpo}{ltion, and that (¥ he , as such résident , being

authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the
corporation by himself/hesself as Pr estdent

In witness whereof I hereto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/fustice-ofthe-Reace




Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attorney General this o(day of ¢Q éﬂér, 2016.
K fhmbr

Division of Attorney General Office

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of , 2016

By:




CERTIFICATE
(Corporation Without Seal)

Isﬁ?ﬁ“"ﬂ't Lmﬂan& , Clerk/Secretary of the A)H CD/[C/‘C "’w;/e”%] @U‘d-/ , do

hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the A¥ Collepe 4 Unsv Couni] . a

New /?;»P e corporation (the “Corporation”); (2) I maintain and have zustody and am familiar
(State of incorporation)

with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of

such books; (4) the following are true, accurate and complete copies of the resolutions adopted b? the Board of

Directors of the Corporation at a meeting of the said Board of Directors held on the 23 "‘day of
20_‘__6_ , which meeting was duly held in accordance with y. AarmprhIre law and
(State of incorporation)

>

the by-laws of the Corporation:

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting by and
through the Department of Education, providing for the performance by the Corporation of certain
services, and that the President (and Vice President) (and the Treasurer) ( or any of them acting singly) be
and hereby (is) (are) authorized and directed for and on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said
contract with the State and to take any and all such actions and to execute, acknowledge and deliver for
and on behalf of this Corporation any and all documents, agreements and other instruments (and any
amendments, revisions or modifications thereto) and (she) (he) (any of them) may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate to accomplish the same;

RESOLVED: That the signature of any officer of this corporation affixed to any instrument or document
in or contemplated by these resolutions shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of said officer to
bind this Corporation thereby;

(5) the foregoing resolutions have not been revoked, annulled, or amended in any manner whatsoever, and remain in
full force and effect as of the date hereof; (6) the following person(s) (has) (have) been duly elected to and now

occupy the office(s) indicated below:
fm:‘d 2 /% ‘.’} A~ President
Sr ﬂa/ﬂk /14/"f Eu/ey Vice President
5 71?" e D‘A.S‘ alve Treasurer

and; (7) the corporation has no seal. st
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of ghe Corporation this / day of

2¢m¢gr ,20/€.

STATE OF A/ [z nudbure )
COUNTY OF /NeAMMack

On this the [Si'day of X&MM_’ 20'_(9 before me, P a:butja’ 2 . EOLLO . the undersigned,

-

personally appeared n , who acknowledged her/himselfto be the
Clerk/Secretary of 1 ) , a corporation, and that she/he as such

Clerk/Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by
signing the name of the corporation by her/himself as Clerk/Secretary.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

(SEAL) -
pﬂ:b\uvn_) m. Edeo

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

My Commission expiresgg




State of Nefw Hampshive
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY COUNCIL is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed February 10, 1967. I further certify that it is in
cood standing as far as this office is concerned. having filed the return(s) and paid the

tees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 29" day of June A.D. 2016

%%/

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




EXHIBITA - 1
SCOPE OF SERVICES

NH College & University Council (NHCUC) will provide the following services to the New Hampshire
Department of Education (NHDOE) beginning September 30, 2016 through September 30, 2017.

Provide a series of professional development opportunities for teachers, including assisting them in
better serving students through promotion and advancement of rigorous academic achievement goals
and promotion of STEM (science, technology, engineering and mathematics) studies and career and
college-ready preparation.

The focus is to expand state-wide and will target secondary teachers and counselors. NHCUC will
provide teachers with personalized and customized access to resources to help meet these
achievement goals including STEM, academic rigor and encouragement of college-ready programs.

The project will have three areas of focus:
1. Improve teacher quality to promote student participation in STEM programs

2. Enhance tools currently available for schools and teachers to encourage education beyond
high school; thus increasing the number of students enrolling in postsecondary education

3. Provide professional development opportunities for secondary teachers, principals and
guidance personnel

Improve secondary teacher quality to promote student participation in STEM studies, in career and
college-ready preparation and academic rigor.

The NHCUC through participation in the promotion of STEM studies, career and college-ready
preparation and the NH Scholars Program will provide secondary teachers with resources that they
would not normally have access to. By providing them with these resources, the secondary teachers
will be able to offer incentives and constant reinforcement to their students and implement a college-
ready, STEM participation culture.

A new NH Scholars STEM Pathway will be implemented and secondary teachers will encourage students
to successfully complete these core courses (at a minimum):

1 year (or more) chosen from STEM-related courses including Technology. Engineering, Computers,
Advanced Manufacturing, etc.

4 English Courses (English [, II, lll, IV)
4 Mathematics Courses (Algebra |, Algebra ll, Geometry)
4 Lab-based Science Courses (Biology, Chemistry, Physics, Pre-engineering, anatomy & physiology, etc))

3.5 History & Social Science Courses (chosen from—U.S. History | & Il, World History, U.S. Government,
World Geography, Economics, etc.)

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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2 Foreign Language Courses [in the same language)

Secondary teachers will receive professional development training to prepare them to encourage all
students to go above and beyond this minimum STEM core course of study. Teachers will help every
student develop a 4-year education plan.

Enhance tools currently available for schools and secondary teachers to encourage education beyond
high school; thus increasing the number of students enrolling in STEM postsecondary education

The NHCUC will assist business leaders in connecting with secondary teachers to provide workshops,
activities and mentoring opportunities to both secondary teachers and students. Secondary teacher
training from various business partners will range from college prep, interview skills, resume building, STEM
career field-specific discussions, job shadowing, STEM internships, and informational interviews.
Secondary school personnel will receive support to provide ongoing activities and constant
reinforcement to their students. The NHCUC will work with schools to develop business partnerships and
assist with coordinating STEM college outreach services.

Project implementation will begin in 8 grade with an early intervention model. Secondary teachers will
be trained to present to all 8t grade students. Presentations will be provided by either local business
volunteers or trained secondary teachers. Secondary teachers will also be trained and prepared to
offer additional activities for students such as STEM peer mentoring (STEM college students and current
State Scholars), service learning opportunities and one-on-one counseling.

In grades 9-11, secondary teachers will be trained to provide constant reinforcement and ongoing
incentives to students interested in STEM and other academic areas to help keep them on the
appropriate path to graduate better prepared for college and careers, including STEM occupations.
Constant communication from secondary guidance staff and secondary teachers is expected to assess
whether additional resources need to be provided (tutoring, mentors, etc.).

QOutcome: Establish 50+ business partnerships with participating secondary schools within the contract
period and improve secondary teacher effectiveness by providing tools and resources necessary to
relate classroom instruction with real-world STEM learning.

Provide professional development opportunities for secondary teachers, principals, and guidance
personnel regarding academic rigor and areas relating to rigor, including STEM, to enhance college-
going rates

The NHCUC will collaborate and provide ongoing training with secondary teachers, principals and
guidance, and school-to-career staff in all of the following areas:

s Assistance developing business partnerships, including training of business presenters, with
particular emphasis on STEM fields

e Ongoing communication of current trends and information regarding college admissions and
financial aid specifically FAFSA, federal aid programs and local resources

s Assistance coordinating college outreach services, presentations and information on STEM
careers

e Regular newsletters communicating with secondary teachers, program opportunities and
potential STEM-field connections

e Assistance with data collection

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education

Page 2 of 5
Contractor Initial,

D (7



¢ Providing publications, handouts and materials, including information on STEM education
» Providing promotional banner, seals for diplomas and gold medaliions, including special
designation for STEM Scholars

Training will occur in multiple ways including:
¢ Initial collaboration when a new secondary school district signs on

+» Ongoing communication via email, phone and on-site meetings regarding curriculum (including
STEM curriculum requirements), STEM program's goals, college admission, financial aid, current
frends in Higher Ed, 21st century skills and STEM career prep

o Training Business leaders and secondary school staff to present various workshops, including the
8th grade PowerPoint and various other programs, including encouragement and linkages to
STEM careers and postsecondary STEM majors

s Providing regional NH Scholars College Access Conventions for secondary teachers, school
faculty, personnel, partners and students to discuss academic rigor, relevance, relationships and
STEM opportunities. Topics may include early awareness, financial aid, and how to encourage
students to go beyond high school and prepare for STEM careers.

» Providing regular newsletters to all participating school districts covering information on current
frends in college admission, financial aid, outreach support, various college planning resources
and postsecondary STEM majors and STEM career opportunities

The NHCUC wiill provide professional development to secondary teachers and guidance personnel to
help them better understand the needs of their students. Professional development will be available in
the form of workshops from several partner trainers including: Campus Compact for New Hampshire,
The NHHEAF Network Organizations, the NH College & University Council and Project Lead the Way.
Particular emphasis on enhancing understanding and value of pursuing STEM education will be
incorporated. Professional trainings will address issues such as socioeconomic challenges, how to better
relate to students in the 21st century, strategies for increasing interest in STEM fields and tackling issues
facing students, etc. These workshops may also provide forums on cultural competency and diversity
learning.

The NHCUC will work within the secondary teacher preparation programs at member institutions through
regular communication activities and gatherings of postsecondary faculty and teacher education
students to enhance a better understanding of the importance of academic rigor in high school,
opportunities and pathways to STEM careers and strategies to improve student success and steer STEM
majors.

Professional Training for Secondary Teacher and School Personnel to Assist Students in College
Application Process

in partnership with the NHHEAF Network, the NHCUC will collaborate to implement professional training
for secondary teachers and school personnel. This training will provide resources and tools for secondary
teachers and personnel to assist their students in college planning and college applications. NHHEAF
and NHCUC will lead these activities.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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New Hampshire has joined the American College Application Campaign (ACAC) and will host I Am
College Bound college application programs during the month of November. The purpose of the
college application program is to provide training to teachers and guidance personnel to increase the
number of students who pursue a postsecondary education. Particular emphasis will be placed on
encouraging students to consider STEM majors and careers. Teachers will invite students to submit at
least one college admission application during a particular day with the support of their school and
tocal higher education professionals.

New Hampshire's | Am College Bound Collaborative (through NHHEAF), in partnership with ACAC, will
provide step-by-step support to several at-risk schools including the Manchester School District.
Secondary teachers will be trained via a guidebook/toolkit of resources including sample letters,
schedules, and checklists. Student participants will receive stickers which read, *I Am College Bound -1
Applied” and also have the opportunity to win education-related STEM prizes such as Kindle e-readers,
book scholarships and scientific calculators. Most notably, however, secondary teachers will receive
additional support in helping students to access higher education, including the pursuit of STEM careers.

The college application event will be held at least one day during the month of November 2016,
although teachers will be offered professional development to better assist students in advance of the
program to ensure they are prepared.

Outcome: Conduct annual professional development conventions for secondary teachers, principals
and school personnel. 85% of participants will report that workshops and other communication resulted
in increased capacity of students completing rigorous, including STEM courses, programs and increases
in college-going rates, particularly in STEM fields. Increased enrollment in rigorous courses, including
STEM, will be collected via the i.4.see data system. Furthermore, secondary teachers and school
personnel will be fully trained to better assist their students when applying for college, with particular
emphasis on STEM majors and career opportunities.

Publicity Plan:
The NHCUC will take advantage of:

¢ media outlets and promotional materials to students, families and businesses including STEM
companies

« q positive word of mouth approach to encourage increase interest in STEM and rigorous
academic programs

¢ reaching out to all of the necessary groups to help create increased interest in STEM Pathways

¢ continuing to develop and distribute regular newsletters to hundreds of secondary teachers,
school administrators and business leaders encouraging increased awareness of educational
STEM opportunities and careers

o writing Op-Ed articles for local newspapers, promoting the expansion of the STEM program of NH
Scholars

¢ reaching out to local communities to increase awareness of STEM academic pathways and
career opportunities

In the spring of 2017, the NHCUC will host a recognition event, called NH Scholars Day. This event will
properly recognize all secondary teachers, principals, counselors, school personnel and students for
their success and effectiveness in the program. Particular emphasis on students pursuing STEM programs
will be incorporated.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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Budget (through September 30, 2017)

EXHIBITB - 1

BUDGET

Salaries & Wages $67,750.00
Director

Employee Benefits $28,750.00
Travel $3,000.00
Materials & Supplies $14,000.00
Medadallions, Postage, etc.

Contracts/Services $14,000.00
Audit, bookkeeping, PR, website,

trainers, overhead

Event & Programming $7.500.00
Outreach, recognition,

conventions, events, etc.

Funding Sources

NHDOE Funding $135,000.00
Sponsorships $65,000.00
Total Program Cost $200,000.00

Limitation on Price: Upon mutual agreement between the state contracting officer and the
contractor, line items in this budget may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the
total budget exceed the price limitation of $135,000 for the NH Department of Education.

Funding Source: 010-056-67770000-102-500731

Method of Payment: Payment is to be made monthly on the basis of invoices which are
supported by a summary of activities that have taken place in accordance with the terms of
the contract, along with a detailed listing of expenses incurred. If otherwise correct and
acceptable, payment will be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. Invoices and reports
shall be submitted to: N.H. Department of Education

Division of Higher Education

101 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education v

Page 5 of 5 }

Contractor Initi

D ¢



' ® DATE {MWDD/YYYY
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE : )

6/28/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If the cortificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy({ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the pollcy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER SENIAST Joshua Grant
SBIA - Strategic Benefit & Insurance Advisors LLC P(EH!S:ONtE £y, (603)488-6800 mé’Nﬁ:(soa)sss-oass
265 S. River Rd, Unit C EMAL ¢ joshua.grant@strategic-bia.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Bedford NH 03110 INSURER A :Philadelphia Contributionship
INSURED INSURERB :CNA Inc.
New Hampshire College and University Council INSURER C :
3 Barrell Court INSURER D :
Suite 100 INSURER E :
Concord NH 03301 INSURERFE :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL.1662800470 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

TNSR ADDL|SUBR BOLICY EFE | POLICY EXP
LIR TYPE OF iINSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DDIYYYY) MDD/W§Y) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR PREMISES {Ea oceurrence} | § 100,000
PHPK1464001 3/1/2016 | 3/1/2017 | MED EXP (Any one person) g 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 1§ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
X | pouicY D e D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: 3
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea gccident $ 1,000,000
B X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Parperson) | §
ALLDWNED SCHEDULED 6020962525 3/1/2016 | 3/1/2017 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
T | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident) $
. Medical payments $ 5,000
X |UMBRELLALIAB | X | oCcCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A EXCESS LiAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
oD | X | RETENTIONS 10,000 PEUB532800 3/1/2016 | 3/1/2017 s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER orH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN Sthrure | | K
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E L. EAGH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? NiA
B |{Mandatory in NH} 6020987396 3/1/2016 | 3/1/2017 | L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH § 500,000
If yes, dasceibe under
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LMIT L § 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of NH Dept of Education THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
101 Pleasant Street ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Joshua Grant/JOSH

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
INS025 201401




ADDITIONAL COVERAGES

Ref# | Description ' Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date
Uninsured motorist combined single limit UMCSL
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
1,000,000
Ref# | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Increased employer's liability . INEL .
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
$6.00
Ref# | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Domstc Terrorism EQ Cat DTERR
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
$45.00
Ref# | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Expense constant ’ EXCNT
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
$160.00
Ref# | Description Caverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
Ref# | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Limit { Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
Ref # | Description Coverage Code | Form No. _ | Edition Date
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
Ref # | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
Ref# | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Limit1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
Ref # | Description Coverage Code | Form No. . | Edition Date
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium
Ref # | Description Coverage Code | Form No. Edition Date
Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

OFADTLCV ) Copyright 2001, AMS Services, Inc.




The NHCUC Board of Directors consists of the president from each member institution. The
Chancellor of the University System and the Chancellor of the NH Community College System
serve as ex officio members. The Board provides oversight and approval of all Council activities,
meets four times each academic year, and hosts regular Presidential Retreats.

‘Board of Directors (2015-2017)
Chair

Todd Leach
Chancellor

University System of New Hampshire

Viee-Chair

Sr. Paula Marie Buley
President

Rivier University

Treasurer

Steven DiSalvo
President
Saint Anselm College

Members

Stephen B. Jones
President
Antioch University New England

Michele Perkins
President
New England College

Susan Stuebner
President
Colby-Sawyer College

Philip Hanlon
President
Dartmouth College

Andrew Card
President
Franklin Pierce University

Kent Devereaux
President
New Hampshire Institute of Art

Ross Gittell
Chancellor
Community College System of NH

Lucille Jordan
President
Nashua Community College

Donald Birx
President
Plymouth State University

Sr. Paula Marie Buley, IHM
President
Rivier University



Mark Rubinstein
President
Granite State College

Leonida Koskos
President
Hellenic American University

Anne E. Huot
President
Keene State College

Charles F. Monahan, Jr.
President
MCPHS University

Steven DiSalvo
President
Saint Anselm College

Paul LeBlanc
President
Southern New Hampshire University

Mark Huddleston
President
University of New Hampshire

Todd Leach
Chancellor
University System of New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire College
& University Council

Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire College &
University Council (the “Council”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the related statements of activities
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
. judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



Board of Directors
New Hampshire College
& University Council

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Council as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
taken as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses starting on page 13 is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the combined financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Council’s 2014 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
October 3, 2014. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, is consistent, in all material respects,
with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

November 30, 2015 / W ; /GL(. }Dc
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable

- Prepaid expenses
Investments
Property and equipment, net
Deposits

Total assets

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See notes to financial statements,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of June 30,2015
(with comparative totals for 2014)

ASSETS
Temporarily

Unrestricted  Restricted 2015 2014
$ 40225 $ 37,750 § 71,975 3 6,271
48,144 - 48,144 38,955
99,044 - 99,044 18,709
12,846 - 12,846 3,892
1,237,564 - 1,237,564 1,240,245
6,970 - 6,970 11,188
3,032 - 3,032 3,032
$1,447825 § 37,750 $1,485,575 $ 1,322,292

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

§ 49693 § - % 49,693 5 3,708
80,486 - 80,486 87,273
15,000 - 15,000 2,975
145,179 - 145,179 93,956
1,302,646 - 1,302,646 1,227,968
- 37,750 37,750 368
1,302,646 37,750 1,340,396 1,228,336
51447825 § 37,750 $1,485,575 $ 1,322,292
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
(with comparative totals for 2014)

Revenue
Dues
Grants
Other revenues
Investment income
Contract revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue
Expenses
State Scholars Initiative
Forum
Admissions
Career counseling
Academic affairs
Library project
NH Coalition for Business Education
Total program expenses
General administration

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
realized and unrealized gains (losses)

Realized gains on investments
Unrealized (losses) gains on investments
Increase in net assets

Net assets, bepinning of year

Net assets, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

Temporarily

Unrestricted _Restricted 2018 2014
$ 447,000 § - § 447,000 $ 428,800
232,855 37,750 270,605 205,020
81,927 - 81,927 73,201
43,566 - 43,566 40,072
39,600 - 39,600 4,800
368 (368) - -
845,316 37,382 882,698 751,893
218,813 - 218,813 207,457
100,787 - 100,787 92,926
80,441 - 80,441 83,167
78,261 - 78,261 68,668
64,210 - 64,210 57,7172
56,031 - 56,031 51,060
16,512 - 16,512 18,500
615,055 - 615,055 579,550
182,902 - 182,902 220,355
797,957 - 797,957 799,905
47,359 37,382 84,741 (48,012)
119,221 - 119,221 -
(91,902) - (91,902) 136,345
74,678 37,382 112,060 88,333
1,227,968 368 1,228,336 1,140,003
$1,302,646 $ 37,750 5§ 1,340,396 $ 1,228,336
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
(with comparative totals for 2014)

Cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation
Realized (gains) on investments
Unrealized losses (gains) on investments
(Increase) in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable
(Increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) aperating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for investments
Cash received from investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

2015 014

$ 112,060 $ 88,333
4,218 4,219
(119,221) -
91,902 (136,345)
9,189) (13,451)
(80,335) 41,377
(8,954) (1,340)
45,985 (72,266)
(6,787) 19,260
12,025 (44,738)
41,704 (114,951)
(819,643) (40,059)
849,643 90,059
30,000 50,000
71,704 (64,951)
6,271 71,222

$ 71,975 $ 6271
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

New Hampshire College & University Council (the “Council”) was established
and incorporated in 1967. The Council is a nonprofit organization whose purpose
is the advancement of higher education in the State of New Hampshire. The
Council accomplishes this by providing a forum to discuss higher education within
the State, cooperating with member institutions of higher education through the
sharing of information and mutual problem-solving and collaborating in programs
of mutual interest. The Council’s major source of revenue is derived from dues.

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting policies

The Council prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP) for not-for-profit entities. The significant accounting and reporting
policies used by the Council are described subsequently to enhance the usefulness
and understandability of the financial statements.

Net assets

The categories, unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net
assets are defined as follows:

Unrestricted — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the
Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted — Net assets whose use is limited by law or donor-imposed
stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or
removed by actions of the Council.

Permanently Restricted — Reflects the historical cost of gifts (and in certain
circumstances, -the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor-imposed

© stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to produce
income for general or specific purposes. There are no pcrmanently restricted net
assets at the Council.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Comparative totals

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Council’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2014, from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Council considers all unrestricted
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at June 30, 2015.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Balances that are still outstanding after management has
used reasonable collection efforts are written-off through bad debt expense and a
credit to accounts receivable.

Grants receivable and revenue

Grants receivable and revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred
. for cost-reimbursement grants or contracts, or when a unit of service is provided

for performance grants.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities and debt securities are carried at market value
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the changes of net assets in the accompanying statement of
activities. Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or in the case of donated assets, at
fair market value. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged as an
expense when incurred and purchases in excess of $1,000 are capitalized as
additions to property and equipment.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method with charges to expense in
amounts estimated to recover the cost of these assets over their useful lives as

follows:
Equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years

Revenue recognition

Contract revenue is recognized when services are rendered or costs are incurred.
Dues are recognized ratably over the term of membership. Dues received in
advance of the period are shown as deferred revenue in the accompanying
statements of financial position.

Functional allocation of expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of functional expenses.

Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

General and administrative expenses include those costs that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for overall support and
direction of the Council.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i\Iote 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)
Fair value of financial instruments

Cash, trade, other accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities are carried in the financial statements at amounts which
approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions.
The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for
certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized
upon immediate liquidation.

Income taxes

The Council is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code as a charitable organization, whereby only unrelated
business income, as defined by Section 509(a)(1) of the Code, is subject to federal
income tax. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Council had no unrelated business
income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded. The
income tax filings for the tax years before 2011 are no longer subject to
examination by federal and state taxing authorities.

Reclassification

Certain 2014 amounts have been reclassified to conform to 2015 classification.
These reclassifications had no effect on the increase in net assets for 2014.

Note 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This
hierarchy consists of three broad levels:

Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and have the highest priority;

Level 2 inputs consist of quoted prices for similar assets in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive
markets, or observable inputs other than quoted market prices;

Level 3 inputs consist of inputs that are unobservable and
significant to the fair value measurement and have the lowest
priority.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, grants receivable consisted of $99,044 and $18,709,
respectively, for the State Scholars Initiative. The Council has successfully
completed all requirements of the respective grant agreements.

Note 5. INVESTMENTS

The cost and market values of investment securities at June 30 were as follows:

2015 014
Market Market
Cost Value Cost Value
Mutual funds - domestic equity $ 758,266 § 892,392 § 544,486 § 763,994
Mutual funds - domestic bonds 358,474 345,172 419,116 412,359
Mutual funds - international equity - - 50,000 63.892
Total $1,116,740 $1.237564 $1.013,602 §1.240.245

Other than mutual fund fees, there were no expenses relating to investments in
2015 and 2014.

Investment return is summarized as follows at June 30;

201 2014
Interest and dividend income $ 43,556 $ 40,059
Realized gain on investments 119,221 -
Unrealized (loss) gain on investments (91,902) 136,345
Total $ 70,875 $176,404

As discussed in Note 3 to these financial statements, the Council is required to
report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the
ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Council’s valuation
techniques. The valuation technique used to measure investments is Level 1. Level
1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices
in active markets for identical investments as of June 30, 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment were comprised of the following at June 30:

015 014

Furniture and equipment $ 73,571 $ 73,571
Vehicle 13,534 13,534
Computer equipment 9,836 9,836
Leasehold improvements 3,307 3,307
Total 100,248 100,248

Less accumulated depreciation 93,278 89,060
Net property and equipment $ 6,970 $11,188

Note 7. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following specific service

at June 30:
2015 2014

Athletic Scholarship Award $ 37,750 $ -
CACGS - 368

Note 8. PENSION PLAN

The Council established a defined contribution plan that operates under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers all qualified employees
beginning on the first of the month after the date employment begins. At the
present time, the employee may defer up to 5% of their annual salary. The
Council’s plan contributions are up to 10% of employee salary. For the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Council contributed $24,281 and $25,344 to

the plan, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. COMMITMENTS

Note 10.

Note 11.

Note 12.

The Council had an agreement to lease office space in Concord, New Hampshire
that expired in June 2015. Currently, the Council is renting the space on a month to
month basis. For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, rent expense was
$18,672 and $18,132, respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Council invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are

exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the
level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

AFFILIATED ORGANIZATION

The Council is affiliated with Campus Compact for New Hampshire (“Campus
Compact”). Both entities have interrelated directors and shared staff for which the
Council incurred $95,496 and $61,964 in consultant expenses for the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Council recognized contract revenues
of $34,500 and $0 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
net amount due to (from) Campus Compact at June 30, 2015 and 2014 was
$20,996 and $(834), respectively.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Council has evaluated subsequent events through November 30, 2015, the
date which the financial statements were available to be issued, and has not
evaluated subsequent events after that date. No subsequent events were identified
that would require disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2015.
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Thomas R. Horgan, Ed.D.

Education

B.S. in History/Political Science, Minor in Business Administration, Morningside College, 1975
(Magna cum Laude)
MPA, School of Public Administration, University of Nebraska at Omaha, 1980
Drake University (post-graduate studies in higher education), 1989/1991
Ed.D. Graduate School of Education, New England College, 2014
Dissertation: The Emergence of Nontraditional College Presidents at Small,
Private Colleges in New England

Experience

NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL 1993-present
The NHCUC is a statewide consortium of public and private higher education institutions,
including Dartmouth College and the University of New Hampshire. The Council’s mission
includes public advocacy, collaborative programs, and innovative initiatives. The board is
comprised of member college/university presidents and chancellors

President and CEO
Serve as the chief executive officer responsible for mission fulfiliment, advocacy, ongoing

-programs and new initiatives. Strong expertise in analyzing the needs of colleges and
universities and in collaborating with trustees, administrators, faculty, students and community
to design strategic plans and initiatives to strengthen institutions and ensure critical resources
are available to support aspirations and visons.

» Federal funding appropriation for campus technology enhancements of eight million
dollars

e Learn and Serve America/AmeriCorps Grants in excess of one million dollars annually for
over twenty years

e Revitalization of Council’s mission and establishment as a major resource on subjects
relative to higher education at both state and federal levels

¢ Coordination of admissions, academic affairs, career services, and library services
collaborative activities among member institutions

e Serve as higher education sector representative with state and federal policy makers

s Direct efforts in founding, establishment and maintenance of Campus Compact for New
Hampshire



Co-founder of The NH Forum on the Future, a compact of business, education, and
public policy makers working to leverage resources for the benefit of the state and its
citizens

Chief administrator for New Hampshire Scholars program in NH high schools, securing
over two million dollars in support of the program ’
Instrumental in creation of New Hampshire’s 529 College Savings plan, now the fifth
largest in the country with unique payment to institutions for scholarships and
endowment payments for scholarships, exceeding ten million dollars annually
Increased financial reserves by tenfold through grants and investments

NEBRASKA INDEPENDENT COLLEGE FOUNDATION 1987-1993 -
The NICF is a statewide alliance of private colleges and universities seeking annual financial
support from the corporate community and engaging in public marketing to enhanced
appreciation for the member institutions.

President
- Leadership position responsible for directing corporate partnerships and fundraising activities
on behalf of member higher education institutions

Raised in excess of seven million dollars in financial support for member institutions
Directed organizations first statewide public perception study for use in developing
marketing campaign ,
Developed strategic plan for Foundation to reposition organization to better meet the
expectations of the member colleges

Significantly increased visibility of organization among wide array of constituencies

NEBRASKA STATE SENATE 1991-1993
Elected to the Nebraska State Senate to represent Omaha’s 4th Legislative District

State Senator, District 4

Elected Chair of Retirement Systems Committee

Directed legislative studies and conducted hearings throughout the state
Primary sponsor and floor manager of major legislation

Recipient of Friend of Education Award for 1992



INTERNORTH CORPORATION (Following merger: Enron Corp) 1980-1987
A major energy corporation with operations in all fifty states

Positions:
Director, Corporate Affairs and Foundation 1986-1987
Director, State Government Relations 1983-1986
Manager, Issue Analysis/Communications 1982-1983
Research Analyst/Consultant 1980-1982
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA at OMAHA 1979-1980

The urban campus of the University of Nebraska with over 15,000 students

Graduate Assistant
Coordinated statewide seminar for county government officials and assisted professors in class
preparation for undergraduate classes

YOUNKERS, INC 1975-1979
A regional retailer with locations in six mid-western states

Merchandise Manager
Responsible for managing staff, sales and purchasing of merchandise

MEMBERSHIPS/ PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

New Hampshire Commissioner, Education Commission of the States
(Gubernatorial appointment) (ECS)

Immediate Past President and Board Member National Association for Collaborative
Leadership (ACL)

Delegate, New England Board of Higher Education — Past Chair, NH delegation and
Member of Executive Committee (NEBHE)

Board Member, Campus Compact for New Hampshire {founding member)
Board Member and Treasurer, Granite State Management and Resources

Board and Executive Committee Member: National Association of Independent Colleges
and Universities — State Executives {NAICUSE)

Co-Founder, New Hampshire Forum on the Future — Co-chair of Advisory Committee



Founding Administrator/Board Member/Steering Committee Member, New
Hampshire Scholars

Founding Member/Steering Committee Member, New Hampshire Coalition for
Business and Education

Founding Member and Advisory Board Member, STAY WORK PLAY New Hampshire
Member, New Hampshire College Tuition Savings 529 Plan Advisory Commission
Member, New Hampshire State Scholars Advisory Committee

Member, New Hampshire Rail Transit Authority Advisory Board

Past Advisory Council Member, Governor’s Best Schoofs Initiative

Past State Board Member, Schoo/-to-Work State Commission

Past Board Member, NH Health and Higher Education Finance Authority

Past Chair, Gover'nor’s Youth Council

Past Board Member, New Hampshire Workforce Opportunity Council

Past Member, U.S Department of Commerce, District Export Council

Education Leader for the 21st Century, Business New Hampshire Magazine

Champion of Educational Opportunity Award Recipient, New Hampshire Educational
Opportunity Association

Doctorate of Law, Honorary Degree Recipient, Rivier University, 2007

Publications/Selected Speeches

Author, Public Policy and Consortia: The Role of Higher Education Advocacy, Black Bird
Press, 2016

Author, Leveraging Resources Higher Education for Workforce Development, Leveraging
Resources Through Partnerships, Josey Bass, 2002

Author, The Role of the Consortium Director, Best Practices in Higher Education
Consortia: How Institutions Can Work Together, Josey Bass, 1999.



Author, Accessing Higher Education in New Hampshire: A White Paper Outlining the
Importance of Increasing Need Based Scholarship Funding for New Hampshire Students,
2005

] Author, Positioning Higher Education as the Cornerstone to New Hampshire’s Future
A Guide to Changing the Dynamics of the Education/Workforce Paradigm, 2005

Commencement Address, Norte Dame College, Remember to Rejoice in Your
Accomplishments, Manchester, NH, 2007

Commencement Address, Rivier University, Your Future is Important to All of Us,
Nashua, NH, May 2007

Author, Positioning New Hampshire Higher Education for the Future, 2009 and 2016

Address before annual meeting of Southern New Hampshire Regional Planning
Commission, The Importance of Higher Education to New Hampshire’s Economic
Success, September, 2010

Author, Positioning Higher Education as the Cornerstone to New Hampshire’s Future
A Guide to Changing the Dynamics of the Education/Workforce Paradigm, 2013 and
2014



References

Dr. George Hagerty

President

Beacon College’

Former President, Franklin Pierce University

gihagertyl@aol.com

623-910-0116

| first met George when he was appointed president of Franklin Pierce College. While he was in
New Hampshire he served on my board and we worked on a number of projects together,
including a federal grant for $8 million.

Dr. Richard Gustafson

President Emeritus

Southern New Hampshire University

r.gustafson@snhu.edu

603-377-6829

Dick was on the board that hired me in 1993 to lead the New Hampshire College & University
Council. We have worked together over the past twenty three years on higher education
issues.

Dr. Steve Reno

Executive Director, Leadership NH

Former Chancellor, University System of New Hampshire

stephen.reno@usnh.edu

603-969-3355

| met Steve when he was appointed Chancellor of the University System of New Hampshire and
he served on my board. We worked closely on initiatives on behalf of public and private higher
education.

Dr. Wayne Anderson

Search Consultant

AGB Search

Retired President, Associated Colleges of the South

wanders1937@gmail.com

Phone: ‘

| have known Wayne for close to thirty years. First, when he was President of the Alabama
Independent College Foundation and | held a similar position in Nebraska. For the past twenty
plus years we have served together on the board of the Association for Collaborative Leaders.




Mr. Fred Kocher
President
Kocher & Company
Former President, NH High Technology Council
fredk7@myfairpoint.net
" 603-498-5221 '
I have known Fred for over twenty years in New Hampshire. He and | co-founded the New
Hampshire Forum on the Future and have been engaged in a number of higher
education/business initiatives together.

Dr. Lawrence Dotolo

President

Virginia Tidewater Consortium for Higher Education

lgdotolo@aol.com

757-683-3183

| have known Larry for twenty three years as a colleague who leads a higher education
consortium. We have served on the board of the Association for Collaborative Leaders for
many years and Larry is the editor of three higher education books in which he asked me to
author chapters.




Scott C. Power

SUMMARY

Highly skilled business management professional with extensive expenence in education administration,
including college planning and event management. Proven ability to successfully interact with a broad range
of clientele. Excellent organizational and presentation skills that consistently elicit positive feedback from
clients. Personable and adaptable with a strong business sense.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
State Scholars Initiative, The NH College & University Council (NHCUC) 2007 - present
Director, New Hampshire Scholars (2007 - present)

Lead statewide initiative encouraging high school students to take a rigorous core course of study
Expanded project from four pilot schools to more than 78 school districts

Work closely with school guidance and curriculum coordinators to ensure rigorous courses and
appropriate class options are avaiable in participating distrcts

Lead on-going discussions with NH Department of Education officials and the Governor’s office
pursuing legislative measures to sustain program Jongevity and success

Serve as liaison between business partners and school coordinators

Increased business/community partners from 18 to 400

Successfully manage a $300,000 federal grant budget

Effectively write marketing materials, press releases and grant proposals (RFPs)

Have established networks with national organizations to bring credibility and distinction to the
success of the program (Co/llege Ready New Fingland, College Board, ety)

Coordinate annual convention for New Hampshire Scholar school administrators and partners
Develop and write monthly e-newsletter distributed to hundreds of school officials and business
leaders (INH Scholars Seoop)

Direct College Access Team as part of the College Access Initiative providing programming and
resources to underserved populations (Access Conventions, ESL Fair, Multicultural Affairs, etc)
Successfully manage and coordinate New Hampshire Scholars web site, www.NHscholars.org
Work directly with college admissions, career directors and Campus Compact for NH on events,
projects and steering committees

Center for College Planning, The NHHEAF Network Organizations 2002 - 2007
Department Manager 2005 - 2007)

Expanded college outreach to 95% of the public high schools in New Hampshire

Coordinated 450 outreach programs to K-16 community in 2006-2007 academic year

(35,000 individuals)

Launched NH’s FAFSA Completion Program as part of National College Goal Sunday campaign
Managed 10 college counselors and 2 part-time assistants. Responsibilities included interviewing,
training, mentoring, and evaluating

Governed an annual $500,000 college planning budget

Served on NHASFAA'’s Finance Committee and General Council (NH Association of Student
Financial Aid Administrators)

Acted as State Coordinator for NT4CM Program (National Training for Counselors & Mentors)
Performed as the primary contact for students and their families utilizing services

Worked directly with college admission and financial aid counselors on special events, projects and
steering comumuittees

Developed and led various trainings and workshops for guidance professionals annually
Produced and implemented an extensive evaluation plan measunng department’s ongoing success
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Program Manager (2004 - 2005)
o Increased attendance at annual Destination College™ convention from 1,000 to 1,400 between '03-‘06
e Coordinated all aspects of this large scale event, including: presenters, volunteers, moderators,
schedule, sponsors, budget, materials, college fair and registration.
Wrote and produced monthly college planning e-newsletter distnbuted to over 4,000 families and
guidance counselors (Guidance Gazette, Dean’s List & Varsity Letter)
e Managed and coordinated department’s outreach calendar and counselor schedules
e Served as main point of contact for all school districts throughout NH to schedule outreach programs
e Led Homeschooling initiative for 3 consecutive years, and hosted annual Homeschool College Fair

College Counselor (2002 ~2004)
o Assisted students & parents with college selection and application process
¢ Read and critiqued hundreds of college essays
* Performed community outreach presentations at high schools for students and parents
o Skilled in Choices, ExPan, Access, PowerPoint, Publisher, Excel, Word, Outlook, etc.
Successfully coordinated Center for College Planning IntralNet site
Produced numerous publications and materials for department

MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS
»  Member of NHSCA (NH School Counselor Association)
¢  Member of NH Coalition for Business 8 Education (NHCBE)
e  Member of State Scholars Board of Directors
e Member of NHCUC College Admission Director Committee
e  Member of NCAN (Nat’l College Access Network) and EFC (Education Finance Council)
o President of Board of Directors for Hudson Youth Baseball, Hudson, New Hampshire

EDUCATION |
‘Master of Education, Administration/Supervision
Antioch University New England, Keene, New Hampshire

Bachelor of Arts, Journalism
Associate in Science, Chemical Dependency
Keene State College, Keene, New Hampshire

RELATED WORK, ACTIVITIES AND INTERESTS
Alvirne High School — Hudson, NH 2002
Basebadl Pitching Coach
¢ Proficient in player and personal development; supervised academic progress; assisted in college
planning with upperclassmen. Also work player and coaches camps with Hudson Youth Baseball

Fidelity Investments — Merrimack, NH 2001 - 2002
Assoviate Service Trader
o Performed customer service in retirement, brokerage, and investment planning

Northern Essex Community College — Haverhill, MA 1999 - 2001
Athletic Adminisiraror & Head Baseball Coach
*  Managed entite capacity of baseball program including schedule, budget, travel arrangements,
fundraising, day-to-day operations, recruiting, hiring assistants and student academic support

Keene State College — Keene, NH 1996 - 1999
Alhletic Administrator & Assistant Varsity [ Head [V Coach
o Developed first-ever sub-varsity program at Keene State College
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Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D. Paul K. Leather
Commissioner of Education Deputy Commissioner

Tel. 603-271-3144 Tel. 603-271-3801

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, N.H. 03301
FAX 603-271-1953
Citizens Services Line 1-800-339-9900

July 28, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
And the Honorable Council

State House , 60\[ f)()uféé/
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 e

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education to enter into a sole source contract, with the New
Hampshire College and University Council, Concord, NH (Vendor Code #154469), in the amount of
$131,924, effective upon Governor and Council approval for the period of October 1, 2015 through
September 30, 2016, with an option to renew for up to one additional fiscal year subject to Governor and
Council approval, to expand professional development opportunities and improve teacher quality for
secondary teachers and counselors regarding academic rigor and promotion of STEM (science, technology,
engineering, and mathematics) studies, to promote high school student career and college-readiness
through participation in a rigorous high school curriculum; and to encourage enrollment in post-secondary
STEM studies. 100% Other Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in FY 2016 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, Administration Fees and
Education Credentialing:

FY 2016
06-56-56-566510-67770000-102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $ 26,000.00
06-56-56-564510-62040000-073-500583 Grants to Schools-State $105,924.00

EXPLANATION

This is a sole source contract as the New Hampshire College and University Council was identified as a grant
recipient when the New Hampshire Department of Education, Division of Higher Education applied for the
College Access Challenge Grant, which increases the rigor of the curriculum taken by students so they are
better prepared for college and career success. The New Hampshire College and University Council is
contributing an additional $32,980.00 in funding towards this initiative to achieve positive program outcomes.
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The New Hampshire College and University Council program builds upon an existing infrastructure to deliver
programming, resources and direct services to increase access to postsecondary education for under-
represented students. It is part of a nationwide collaboration of similar efforts often titled “Scholars”
programs.

The New Hampshire College and University Council has three initiatives that must be accomplished under this
contract: 1) providing professional development opportunities for secondary teachers, principals, and
guidance personnel regarding academic rigor, including STEM, to enhance college enroliment rates; 2)
improving secondary teacher training to promote student participation in STEM studies, in career college-
ready preparation, and academic rigor; and 3) enhancing tools currently available for schools and secondary
teachers that encourage education beyond high school, thus increasing the number of students enrolling in
STEM post-secondary education.

In the event that Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to fund this
project.

Respectfully submitted by,

Virgirfa M. Barry, Ph.D.
Commissioner of Education
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
' GENERAL PROVISIONS '
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Education 101 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH, 03301-3494
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
New Hampshire College and University Council 3 Barrell Court, Suite 100, Concord. NH 03301
1.5 Contractor Phone - | 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number

603-225-4199 06-56-56-566510-67770000- September 30, 2016 $131,924

102-500731, and

06-56-56-564510-62040000-

073-500583
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Virginia M. Barry, Ph.D. (603) 271-3144
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Thomas R. Horgan, President

/\é»/‘ )Q . % A

INl3~Acknowledgement: State of N}(/ , County of /Ner+ima

On 3/ 5/ /5 . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1. i2, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block .12,

1.13.1 Signature of Natary Public or Justice of the Peace

)| Pdluesa, 777, Ected

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Patricia M. Edes Notary Public

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory y:
C Pei)ia Ih. & éiﬁ/ﬂ//}/ sre s 0
%L%uw . 6‘&%“’1 Date: V'/')j i - (ot 7

1.16 Approhl by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: : ' Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the om% General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
- pu—
By: :
e o ]
{ ,

1.18  Approval by the Governr and Executivd Cefuncil (if applicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in biock 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Statc of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agrecment, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which casc
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk.pf the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State

shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account

to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
pavment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authoritics
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmativc action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 1f this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States 1ssue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders.
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. :

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement. administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successar, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Coniractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both,

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean ail
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purposc
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

-9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed. to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. .

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved 1o the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agrecment.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury. death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1.000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and .

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
properiy subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ceriificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees.
certifics and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”). '
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed 3
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy. '

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to.explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be conirary i0 any siate or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, conslitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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EXHIBIT A
Scope of Services
New Hampshire College and University Council (NHCUC)
The NH College and University Council (NHCUC) will provide the following services to the New Hampshire

Department of Education (NHDOE) beginning October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016, with an option to

extend the program for one additional year if needed.

The NHCUC will provide a series of professional development opportunities for teachers, including assisting
them in better serving students through promotion and advancement of rigorous academic achievement goals
and promotion of STEM {science, technology,I engineering, and mathematics} studies and career and college-
readiness preparation.

~ The goal is to expand the program state-wide and to target secondary teachers and counselors. The NHCUC will
provide teachers with personalized and customized access to resources to help meet these achievement goals
including STEM, academic rigor, and encouragement of college-readiness programs.

The program will focus on three primary areas. It will:

1. Provide professional development opportunities for secondary teachers, principals, and guidance

personnel;
2. improve teacher ability to promote student participation in STEM programs; and

3. Enhance the tools currently available for schools and teachers to encourage education beyond

high school, thus increasing the number of students enrolling in postsecondary education.

Improve secondary teacher ability to promote student participation in STEM studies, in career and college-

readiness preparation, and to encourage student support for academic rigor.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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The NHCUC, through parti‘cipation in the promotion of STEM studies, career and college-readiness preparation,
and the NH Scholars Program, will provide secondary teachers with resources that they would not normally have
access to. By providing them with these resources, the secondary teachers will be able to offer incentives and

continuous reinforcement to their students and implement a college-readiness, STEM-focusedculture.

The NHCUC will implement a new NH Scholars STEM Pathway and secondary teachers will encourage students

to successfully complete these core courses (at a minimum):

e 1year (or more) chosen from STEM-related courses including Technology, Engineering, Computers,

Advanced Manufacturing, etc.
e 4 English Courses (English 1, 11, 1il, IV)
s Mathematics Courses (Algebra |, Algebra ll, Geometry)

= 4lab-based Science Courses {Biolegy, Chemistry, Physics,

Pre-engineering, Anatomy and Physiology,

® 3.5 History and Social Science Courses {chosen from—U.S. History | and I!, World History, U.S.

Government, World Geography, Economics, etc.)
e 2 Foreign Language Courses (in the same language)

Secondary teachers will receive professional development training to prepare them to encourage all students to
go above and beyond this minimum STEM core course of study. Teachers will help every student develop a 4-

year education plan.

Enhance tools currently available for schools and secondary teachers to encourage education beyond high

school, thus increasing the number of students enrolling in STEM postsecondary education.

The NHCUC will help business leaders connect with secondary teachers to provide workshops, activities, and

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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mentoring opportunities to both secondary teachers and students. Secondary teacher training by various
business partners will range from college prep, interview skills, resume building, STEM career field-specific
discussions, job shadowing, STEM internships, and informational interviews. Secondary school personnel will
receive support to provide ongoing activities and continuous reinforcement to their students. .The NHCUC will
work with schools to help develop business partnerships and assist with coordinating STEM coliege outreach

services.

Program implementation will begin in 8" grade with an early intervention model. Secondary teachers witl be
trained to give presentations to all 8" grade students. Presenters (speakers) will be local business volunteers or
trained secondary teachers. Secondary teachers will also be trained and prepared to offer additional student
activities such as STEM peer mentoring (by STEM college students and current State Scholars), service learning

opportunities, and one-on-one counseling.

NHCUC will coach secondary teachers in grades 9-11 on how to provide continuous reinforcement and ongoing
incentives to students interested in STEM, and other academic areas. This will help keep students on the
appropriate path to graduate prepared for college and careers, including STEM occupations. Continuous
communication from secondary guidance staff and secondary teachers will also help them assess whether

students need additional resources (including tutoring, mentors, etc.).

Goal: To establish 50+ business partnerships with participating secondary schools within the contract period
and improve secondary teacher effectiveness by providing tools and resources necessary to relate classroom

instruction with real-world STEM learning.

Provide professional development opportunities for secondary teachers, principals, and guidance personnel

regarding academic rigor, and areas relating to rigor including STEM, to enhance college-enrollment rates.

The NHCUC will ‘collaborate with and train secondary teachers, principals, guidance personnel, and school-to-

career staff in the foliowing ways:

e Assistance with developing business partnerships, including training of business presenters, with

particular emphasis on STEM fields;

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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Ongoing communication of current trends and information regarding college admissions and financial
aid specifically FAFSA, federal aid programs, and local resources;

Assistance with coordinating college outreach services, presentations, and information on STEM careers;
Regular ngwsleuers that provide information to secondary teachers regarding program opportunities,
and potential STEM-field connections; '
Assistance with data collection;

Providing publications, handouts, and materials, including information on STEM education;

Providing a promotional banner, seals for diplomas and gold medallions, including special designation

for STEM Scholars.

Training will occur in muitiple ways including:

Initial collaboration when a new secondary school district signs on;

Ongoing communication via email, phone, and on-site meetings regarding curriculum (including STEM
ram goals, college admission, financial aid, current trends in Higher

y LR

Ed, 21° Century skills, and STEM career prep;

Coaching for business leaders and secondary school staff on how to present various workshops,
including the 8" grade PowerPoint and various other programs including how to provide

encouragement and links to STEM careers and postsecondary STEM majors;

Providing regional NH Scholars College Access Conventions for secondary teachers, school faculty,
personnel, partners, and students to discuss academic rigor, relevance, relationships, and STEM
opportunities. Topics may inciude early awareness, financial aid, and how to encourage students to go

beyond high school and prepare for STEM careers; and

Distributing regular newsletters to all participating school districts containing information on current
trends in college admission, financial aid, outreach support, various college planning resources, and

postsecondary STEM majors and STEM career opportunities.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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‘The NHCUC will provide professional development to secondary teachers and guidance personnel to help them
better understand the needs of their students. Professional development will include workshops from these
partner trainers: Campus Compact for New Hampshire, The NHHEAF Network Organizations, the NH College and

. University Council, and Project Lead the Way. Particular emphasis on enhancing the understanding and value of
pursuing STEM eduéation will be incorporated. Professional trainings will address issue's such as socioeconomic
challenges, how to better relate to students in the 21* Century, strategies for increasing interest in STEM fields,
and tackling issues facing students, etc. Warkshops may also provide forums on cultural competency and

diversity learning.

The NHCUC will work within the secondary teacher preparation programs at member institutions through
regular communication, activities, and gatherings of postsecondary faculty and teacher-education students to
enhance a better understanding of the importance of academic rigor in high school, opportunities and pathways

to STEM careers, and strategies to improve student success for STEM majors.

Professional Training for Secondary Teachers and School Personnel to Assist Students in the College

Application Process.

In partnershjp with the NHHEAF Network, the NHCUC will implement professional training for secondary
teachers and school personnel. This training will provide resources and tools for secondary teachers and
personnel to assist their students in college planning and with college applications. NHHEAF and NHCUC will

lead these activities.

New Hampshire has joined the American College Application Campaign {ACAC) and will host / Am College
Boun_d college application programs during the month of November. The purpose of the college application
program is to provide training to teachers and guidance personnel to increase the number of students who
pursue a postsecondary education. Particular emphasis will be placed on encouraging students to consider STEM
" majors and careers. Teachers will invite students to submit at least one college admission application with the

support of their school and local higher-education professionals.

New Hampshire’s | Am College Bound Collaborative {through NHHEAF), in partnership with ACAC, will provide

step-by-step support to several at-risk schools, including the Manchester School District. Secondarv teachers will

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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be trained via a guidebook/toolkit of resources including sample letters, schedules, and checklists. Student

participants will receive stickers which read, “/ Am College Bound — | Applied” and also have the opportunity to
win education-related STEM prizes such as Kindle e-readers, book scholarships, and scientific calculators. Most
notably, however, secondary teachers will receive additional support to help students access higher education,

including the pursuit of STEM careers.

The college application event will be held at least one day during the month of November 2015, although
teachers will be offered professional development to better assist students in advance of the program to ensure

they are prepared.

Goal: To host annual professional development conventions for secondary teachers, principals, and school
personnel. 85% of participants will report that workshops and other communication resulted in increased
capacity of students completing rigorous programs (including STEM courses) and increases in college-going
rates, particularly in STEM fields. Increased enrollment in rigorous courses, including STEM, will be collected via
the i.4.see data system. Furthermore, secondary teachers and school personnel will be fully trained to better
assist their students when applving for college, with particular emphasis on STEM majors and career

opportunities.

In an effort to evaluate progress in secondary teacher effectiveness, the program will help track student data

through high school and onto postsecondary enroliment.

The program is aligned with the NH Department of Education’s data system, i.4.see. This enables school districts
to track student progress through high school by capturing their SASID (student ID nu rr'mber),l course number,
course level, grade level, credit, and grade received. By matching National Student Ciearinghouse data, the
NHCUC will be able to analyze Higher Education enrollmént data. In addition, the NHCUC will be able to clearly
monitor results in terms of student course selection, grades, test scores, core courses completed, and interest in
- STEM areas. The NHCUC will also be éble to assess year-end numbers of students retained and Where they are

headed {returning to high school, enrollment in postsecondary education, interest in STEM fields, etc.).

Publicity Plan:

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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The NHCUC will take advantage of:

Media outlets and promotional materials to students, families and businesses, including STEM

companies; '

s A positive word of mouth approach to encourage increased interest in STEM and other rigorous
academic programs;

e Reaching out to all relevant groups to help create increased interest in STEM Pathways;

¢ Continuing to develop and distribute regular newsletters to hundreds of secondary teachers, school
administrators, and business leaders encouraging increased awareness of educational STEM
opportunities and careers;

¢ Writing Op-Ed articles for local newspapers, promoting the expansion of the STEM program of NH
Scholars; and

¢ Reaching out to local communities to increase awareness of STEM academic pathways and career

opportunities.
In the spring of 2016, the NHCUC will host a recognition event, called NH Scholars Day. This event will properly

recognize all secondary teachers, principals, counselors, school personnel, and students for their success and

effectiveness in the program. Particular emphasis will be placed on students pursuing STEM programs.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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EXHIBITB
Method of Payment and Budget

New Hampshire College and University Council (NHCUC)

Budget (through September 30, 2016)

Exhibit 8

Budget
Salaries & Wages

$65,776.00
Director
Employee Benefits $24,129.00
Travel $3,019.00
| Event & Programming

Outreach, recognition, conventions, $39,000.00
events, etc.
Funding Sources
'NHDOE Funding / $131,924.00
NHCUC Funding $32,980.00
Total Program Cost $164,904.00

The above program costs will be supported by NHCUC for related expenses such as Contracts/Other Services,
Materials and Supplies, Program Support Coordination with Partners, Lead IHE Fiscal Agent and program

support coordination with partners in the amount of $32,980 for the duration of this contract.

Limitation on Price: Upon mutual agreement between the state contracting officer and the

contractor, line items in this budget may be adjusted one to another, butin no case shall the

total budget exceed the price limitation of $131,924.

Funding Source:

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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06-56-56-566510-67770000-102-500731 S 26,000
06-56-56-564510-62040000-073-500583 $105,924

Method of Payment: Payment is to be made monthly on the basis of invoices which are supported by a

summary of activities that have taken place in accordance with the terms of the contract, along with a detailed
listing of expenses incurred including the expenses supported by NHCUC. If otherwise correct and acceptable,
payment will be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. Invoices and reports shall be submitted to: New

Hampshire Department of Education.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Depariment of Education
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EXHIBIT C
Special Provisions

New Hampshire College and University Council (NHCUC)

Subject to Governor and Council approval, authorize the Department to include a renewal option in this
contract for up to one additional fiscal year, subject to the contractor’s acceptable performance of the
terms therein.

Contract between NHCUC and New Hampshire Department of Education
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State of Nefw Hampslhive
- Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY COUNCIL is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed February 10, 1967. I further certify that it is in
good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 22™ day of July A.D. 2015

Gy okl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE
(Corporation Without Seal)

1 5‘1‘(?4#4\//( 1.5574/}4#56/ Clerk/Secretary of the /VH (o ”"4‘ Zﬂﬂl D(I’S/fvéam/do
hereby cemfy that: (l) I am the duly elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the eyl
corporation (the “Corporation”); (2) ! maintain and havc stody and am familiar

(State of incérporation)
with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of
such books; (4) the following are true, accurate and complete copies of the resolutions adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation at a meeting of the said Board of Directors held on the day of
20_{ &, which meeting was duly held in accordance with _Afe-w HAm 5A o law artd
(State of incorporation)

s

the by-laws of the Corporation:

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting by and
through the Department of Education, providing for the performance by the Corporation of certain
services, and that the President (and Vice President) (and the Treasurer) ( or any of them acting singly) be
‘and hereby (is) (are) authorized and directed for and on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said
contract with the State and to take any and all such actions and to execute, acknowledge and deliver for
and on behalf of this Corporation any and all documents, agreements and other instruments (and any
amendments, revisions or modifications thereto) and (she) (he) (any of them) may deem necessary,
desirable or appropriate to accomplish the same;

RESOLVED: That the signature of any officer of this corporation affixed to any instrument or document
in or contemplated by these resolutions shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of said officer to
bind this Corporation thereby;

(5) the foregoing resolutions have not been revoked, annulied, or amended in any manner whatsoever, and remain in
full force and effect as of the date hereof; (6) the following person(s) (has) (have) been duly elected to and now
occupy the office(s) indicated below: '

-7

//‘é AAS 7«) . Hb/"-ﬁﬁ—”} President
55 Q [4 ZZZ{@[{ B g:[:g?z Vice President
.§7L¢UCA? /)1 Sﬂ/ua Treasurer

and; (7) the corporation has no seal.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of thg Corporation this 4= day of

fugusy 20\

STATE OF A\ Wies on ps\m —
COUNTY OF M= 1 r«x

On this the L‘( day of .20 \g';)efore me, T&E\V\r\f\e o O’Qg , the undersigned,
personally appcaredS\’( P\\O\(\\Q s, Le S{P{ ranCh—  who acknowledged her/himself to be the

- Cow
Clerk/Secretary of \Xv/ \BUQ'\D&\'\& € Co\\lq':* ol ‘\‘\\Ytorporanon and‘ that she/he as such

Clerk/Secretary being authorlzcd to do so, executéd the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by
signing the name of the corporation by her/himself as Clerk/Secretary. '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I hereunto set my hand and official seal.
(SEAL)

JASMINE M TORDOFF otary Public/Justice of the Peace

Notary Public, New Hampshire

. . 7
My Commiission expires: My Commission Expires Jun 20, 201
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ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE AT (emtory

03/11/2015
THIS CERTIFICATE IS {SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE IS9UING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: H the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endomed. If sUBROGAﬂON i8 WAIVED, subject to

“the terms and conditions of the po(lcy, cartain policies may require an andorsement. A statement on this cartificate doas not confer rights to the
certificate holder in liau of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 7 S;:‘ggc-r
Davis Towia Morrlil & Everstt

o

5, Exti: 603 225-8611 | (ar, Nop 603-225-7935
115 Alrport Road
]
P O Box 1;50 INSURER(S) AFFOROING COVERAGE NAIC 3
Concord, NH 03302-1260 NSURER A HaNOVer Insurance
INSURED INSURER B :
New Hampshire College and University NSURERC
Cauncil INSURER n:
3 Barrell Court, Sulte 100 A —
Concord, NH 03301 — *
i . | INSURER ¥ : .
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUNBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELQW HAVE BEEN [SSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REGQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH TH!S
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBEQ HEREIN 'S SUBJECT TQ ALL THE TERMS,
| EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
i TYPE OF INSURANCE oy ﬁ{fo POLICY NUMBER (wDSTYY T_(___oomrm LiMTS
A | GENERALLABMUITY : | 03/01/201503/01/2016 £ach oCCURRENCE 31,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY gﬁgﬁﬁgﬂ .%’QE,P.M ~_13300,000
| ctamswaoe [] OCCUR MED EXF [Anyone person) 1 $10,000
X| PD Dad:250 : PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
] GENERAL AGGREGATE | 32,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PROOUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $2,000,000
' poLicy o [ 1iec '3
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABIITY , 03/01/2015)03/01/2018 o ohgoSNaE LM T 4 000,000
X! anvauro i BODLY NJURY (Per parson) | §
' ALL OWNED SCHEQULED
AUTOS AUTOS | é;l_g__:;:’ymgv (PerE accident)| §
X| HireD auToS X RoToaNmED : ; | (Par accxien] i ( S
i3
A [ UMBRECR Law X | occun “ 03/01/2015| 03/01/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
EXCESS LB CLNMS-MAOE AGGREGATE 3
DED i [Rersunous — H
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATY- ] ¢
A | WoRKERS coupeNsaTion e 1 03/01/2015/ 03/01/2018 [8G3 AN | [BE"
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1 $500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E NIA
(Mandatory In NH) £.1 DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $500,000
lo cgﬁ{'&: & Sreranions baigw E.L. DISEASE - PoLcY LM | $500,000
l
DEJCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES [Attsch ACORD 101, Additonal Remarks Schedule, i mose spaca ts required)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of NH, Dept. of Educatlon, THE EXPIRATION DATE THERECF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED N
Division of Higher Education, ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
101 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORZED REPRESENTATIVE
1 M u/ Z
=4 © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire College
& University Council

Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New IHampshire College &
University Council (the “Council”) (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of
activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Managenient's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managemenl 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the {inancial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on.the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finaneial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevan( to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statemcnts in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal eontrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



-

Board of Directors
New Hampshire College
& University Council

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Council as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Muatter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
taken as a whole. The schedulc of functional expenses starting on page [3 is presented
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to preparc the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the combined financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Council’s 2013 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our rcport dated
October 7, 2013. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, is consistent, in all material respects,
with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

October 3, 2014 Lleag.rm s %/zg 2=
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recejvable
Grants.receivable

Prepaid expenses
Investments

Property and equipment, net
Deposits

Total assets

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See notes to financial statements.

As of June 30,'2014

(with comparative totals for 2013)

ASSETS
Temporarily
Unrestricted  Restricted 2014 2013
$ 5903 § 368§ 6,271 $ 71,222
38,955 - 38,955 25,504
18,709 - 18,709 60,086
3,892 . 3,892 2,552
1,240,245 - 1,240,245 1,153,900
11,188 . 11,188 15,407
3,032 - 3,032 3,032
$1,321,924 § 368  $1,322,292  $1,331,703
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
$ 3,708 § - % 3,708 $ 75974
87,273 - 7,273 68,013
2,975 . 2,975 47,713
93,956 - 93,956 191,700
1,227,968 - 1,227,968 1,132,966
- 368 368 7,037
1,227,968 368 1,228,336 1,140,003
$1,321,924  § 368 $1,322,292  $ 1,331,703
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30,2014
(with comparative totals for 2013)

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted 2014 2013
Revenue
Dues ¥ 428,800 % - % 428,800 $ 413,016
Grants 205,020 - 205,020 273,928
Other revenues 73,201 - 73,201 75,273
Investment income 40,072 - 40,072 35,568
Contract revenue 4,800 ’ - 4,800 400
Net assets released from restrictions 6,669 (6,669) - -
Total revenue 758,562 (6,669) 751,893 798,185
Expenses .
CACGS 207,457 - 207,457 274,289
Forum 92,926 - 92,926 - 100,834
Admissions 83,167 - 83,167 84,636
Career counseling 68,668 - 68,668 71,592
Academic affairs 57,772 - 57,772 66,656
Library project 51,060 - 51,060 54,714
NH Coalition for Business Education 18,500 - 18,500 -
Total program cxpeﬁses 579,550 - 579,550 652,721
General administration 220,355 - 220,355 214,953
Total expenses 799,905 - 799,905 867,674
(Decrease) in net assets before
realized and unrealized gains (41,343) (6,669) (48,012) (69,489)
Realized gains on investments ' - - - 74,762
Unrcalized gains on investments 136,345 - 136,345 30,121
' Increase (decrease) in net assets 95,002 (6,669) 88,333 35,394
Net assets, beginning of year 1,132,966 7,037 1,140,003 1,104,609
Net assets, end of year $1,227,968 % 368 §1,228,33¢6 $1,140,003

See notes to financial statements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended Junc 30, 2014
(with comparative totals for 2013)

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 88,333 § 35,394
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to )

net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Depreciation 4,219 3,609
Realized (gains) on investments - (74,762)
Unrealized (gains) on investments (136,345) (30,121)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (13,451) 5,074
Decrease in grants receivablc 41,377 45,918
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (1,340) 1,219
Decrease in accounts payable (72,266) (30,048)
Increase in accrued expenses 19,260 - 8,233
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue (44,738) 47,713
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (114,951) 12,229
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for property and equipment - (6,756)
Cash paid for investments (40,059) (35,467)
Cash received from investments 90,059 65,467
Net cash provided by investing activities : 50,000 23,244
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (64,951) 35,473
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 71,222 35,749
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 6,271 $ 71,222

See notes to financial statements.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

New Hampshire College & University Council (the “Council”) was established
and incorporated in 1967. The Council is a non-profit organization whose purpose
is the advancement of higher education in the State of New Hampshire. The
Council accomplishes this by providing a forum to discuss higher education within
the State, cooperation with member institutions of higher education through
sharing of information and mutual problem-solving and collaborating in programs
of mutual interest. The Council’s major source of revenue is derived from dues.

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting policies

The Council prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP) for Not-for-profit entities. The significant accounting and reporiing
policies used by the Council are described subsequently to enhance the usefulness
and understandability of the financial statements.

Net assets

The categories, unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net
assets are defined as follows:

Unrestricted — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the
Board of Directors.

Temporarily Restricted — Net assets whose use is limited by law or donor-imposed
stipulations that will cither expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or
removed by actions of the Council.

Permanently_Restricted -~ Reflects the historical cost of gifts (and in certain
circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor-imposed
stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to produce
income for general or specific purposes. There arc no permanently restricted net
assets at the Council.
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NEW IHAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect cerlain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Comparative totals

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Council’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2013, from which the summarized information was derived.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposcs of the statement of cash flows, the Council considers all unrestricted
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
" equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Balances thal are still outslanding after management has
used reasonable collection efforts are written-off through bad debt expense and a
credit to accounts receivable.

Grants receivable and revenue

Grants receivable and revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred
for cost-reimbursement grants or contracts, or when a unit of service is provided
for performance grants.

Investments

Investments in marketable sccurities and debt securities are carried at market value
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the changes of net assets in the accompanying statement of
activities. Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or in the case of donated assets, at
fair market value. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged as an
expense when incurred and purchases in excess of $1,000 are capitalized as
additions to property and equipment.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method with charges to expense in
amounts estimated to recover the cost of these asscts over their useful lives as
follows:

Equipment 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures 7 years

Revenue recognition

Contract revenue is recognized when services are rendered or costs are incurred.
Dues are recognized ratably over the term of membership. Dues received in
advance of the period are shown as deferred revenue in the accompanying
statements of financial position.

Functional allgcation of expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of functional expenses.
Accordingly, cerlain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

General and administrative expenses include those costs that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for overall support and
direction of the Council.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Fair value of financial instruments

Cash, trade, other accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities are carried in the financial statements at amounts which
approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions.
The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for
certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized
upon immediate liquidation.

Income taxes

The Council is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code as a charitable organization, whereby only unrelated -
business income, as defined by Section 509(a)(1) of the Code, is subject to federal
income tax. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Council had no unrelated business
income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded. The
income tax filings for the tax years before 2010 are no longer subject to
examination by federal and state taxing authorities.

Reclassification

Certain 2013 amounts have been reclassified to conform to 2014 classification.
These reclassifications had no effect on the increase in net assets for 2013,

Note 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. This
hicrarchy consists of three broad levels:

Level | inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and have the highest priority;

Level 2 inputs consist of quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets, or
observable inputs other than quoted market prices;

Level 3 inputs consist of inputs that are unobservable and significant to the
fair value measurement and have the lowest priority.
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Note 4. GRANTS RECEIVABLLE
At June 30, 2014 and 2013, grants receivable consisted of $18,709 and $60,086,

respectively, from the College Access Challenge Grant. The Council has
successfully completed all requirements of the respective grant agreements.

Note 5. INVESTMENTS

Th,e cost and market values of investment securities at June 30 were as follows:

014 2013

Market Market

Cost Value Cost Yalue
Mutual funds - domestic equity $ 544,486 §$ 763,994 § 594,486 $§ 695,236
Mutual funds - domestic bonds 419,116 412,359 419,116 406,671
Mutual funds - international equity 50,000 63,892 50,000 51.993
Total $1,013.602 $1,240.245 $1,063,602 §$1,153,900

Other than mutual fund fees, there were no expenses relating to investments in

2014 and 2013.

Investment return is summarized as follows:

014 201
Interest and dividend income $ 40,059 $ 35,568
Realized gain on investments - 74,762
Unrealized gain on investments 136,345 30,121 v
Total $ 176,404 3 140,451

As discussed in Note 3 to these financial statements, the Council is required to
report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the
ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Council’s valuation
techniques. The valuation technique used to measure investments is Level 1. Level
1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investmcents measured at quoted prices
in active markets for identical investments as of June 30, 2014,
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Note 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment were comprised of the following at June 30:

2014 2013
Furniture and equipment 873,571 $ 73,571
Vchicle 13,534 13,534
Computer equipment 9,836 9,836
Leasehold improvements 3307 3,307
Total 100,248 100,248

Less accumulated depreciation 89,069 84,841
Net property and equipment $11,188 $ 15,407

Note 7. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following specific service

at June 30:
2014 2013

CACGS $ 368 Y 7,037
Note 8. PENSION PLAN

The Council established a defined contribution plan that operates under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan covers all qualified employees
beginning on the first of the month after the date employment begins. At the
present time, the emiployee may defer up to 5% of their annual salary. The
Council’s plan contributions are up to 10% of employee salary. For the years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Council contributed $25,344 and $27,643 to
the plan, respectively.
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Note 9. COMMITMENTS

Note 10.

Note 11.

The Council cntered into a new agrecment to lease office space in Concord, New
Hampshire under a non-cancelable agreement that expires in June 2015, The lease
requires monthly rental payments of $1,467, adjusted annually based on the
Consumer Price Index. The Council also leases office equipment under an
agreement which expires in November 2014. Future commitments under non-
cancelable operating leases is $20,457 for the fiscal year ended 2015.

For the years ended Junc 30, 2014 and 2013, rent expense was $22,491 and
$22,663, respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Council invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the
level of risk associated with cerlain investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Council has evaluated subsequent events through October 3, 2014, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued, and have not evaluated
subsequent events after that date. No subsequent events were identified that would
rcquire disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended Junc 30, 2014.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of the president from each member institution. The Chancellor of the
University System and the Chancellor of the NH Community College System serve as ex officio members.
The Board provides oversight and approval of all Council activities, meets four times each academic
year, and hosts regular Presidential Retreats. '

Board of Directors {2015-2017)
Chair

Todd Leach
Chancellor
University System of New Hampshire

Vice-Chair

Sr. Paula Marie Buley
President

Rivier College

Treasurer
Steven DiSalvo

President
Saint Anselm College

Members

Stephen B. Jones : Kent Devereaux

President President

Antioch University New England New Hampshire Institute of Art
Michele Perkins Ross Gittell

President Chancellor

New England College Community College System of NH
Thomas C. Galligan Lucille Jordan

President President

Colby-Sawyer College Nashua Community College
Philip Hanlon 4 Donald Birx

President : President

Dartmouth College Plymouth State University
Andrew Card Sr. Paula Marie Buley, IHM
President ' President

Franklin Pierce University Rivier University

Todd Leach Steven DiSalvo



President
Granite State College

Leonida Koskos
President
Hellenic American University

Anne E. Huot
President
Keene State College

Charles F. Monahan, Jr.
President
MCPHS University

President
Saint Anseim College
Paul LeBlanc

President
Southern New Hampshire University

Mark Huddleston
President
University of New Hampshire

Todd Leach
Chancellor
University System of New Hampshire




Thomas R. Horgan, Ed.D.

Education

B.S. in History/Political Science, Minor in Business Morningside College, 1975
Magna cum Laude graduate

MPA, School of Public Administration, University of Nebraska Omaha, 1980

Drake University (post-graduate studies in higher education), 1989/1991

Ed.D, Graduate School of Education, New England College, 2014

Experience

NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE & UNIVERSITY COUNCIL 1993-present
The NHCUC is a statewide consortium of public and private higher education institutions,
incfuding Dartmouth College and the University of New Hampshire. The Council’s mission
includes public advocacy, collaborative programs, and innovative initiatives. The board is
comprised of member college/university presidents and chancellors

President and CEO
Chief executive officer responsible for mission fulfillment, advocacy, ongoing programs and new

initiatives

e Federal funding appropriation for campus technology enhancements of eight million’
dollars

e learn and Serve America/AmeriCorps Grants in excess of one million dollars annually for
over twenty years

e Revitalization of Council’s mission and establishment as a major resource on subjects
relative to higher education at both state and federal levels

¢ Coordination of admissions, academic affairs, career services, and library services
collaborative activities among member institutions

e Serve as higher education sector representative with state and federal policy makers

e Directed efforts in founding, establishment and maintenance of Campus Compact for
New Hampshire , '

e Co-founder of The NH Forum on the Future, a compact of business, education, and
public policy makers working to leverage resources for the benefit of the state and its
citizens

e Chief administrator for New Hampshire Scholars program in majority of NH high schools,
securing over two million dollars in support of the program



e Instrumental in creation of New Hampshire’s 529 College Savings plan, now the fifth
largest in the country with unique payment to institutions for scholarships and
endowment payments for scholarship funds, exceeding ten million dollars annually

* Increased financial reserves by tenfold through grants and investments

NEBRASKA INDEPENDENT COLLEGE FOUNDATION 1987-1993

The NICF is a statewide alliance of private colleges and universities seeking annual financial
support from the corporate community and engaging in public marketing to enhanced
appreciation for the member institutions. ,

President _
Leadership position responsible for directing corporate partnerships and fundraising activities
on behalf of member higher education institutions

* Raised in excess of seven million dollars in financial support for member institutions

e Directed organizations first statewide public perception study for use in developing
marketing campaign

o Developed strategic plan for Foundation to reposition organization to better meet the
expectations of the member colleges

e Significantly increased visibility of organization among wide array of constituencies

NEBRASKA STATE SENATE 1991-1993
Elected to the Nebraska State Senate to represent Omaha’s 4th Legislative District

State Senator, District 4
e Elected Chair of Retirement Systems Committee
o Directed legislative studies and conducted hearings throughout the state
e Primary sponsor and floor manager of major legislation
e Recipient of Friend of Education Award for 1992

INTERNORTH CORPORATION (Following merger: Enron Corp) 1980-1987
A major energy corporation with operations in all fifty states

Paositions:
Director, Corporate Affairs and Foundation 1986-1987
Director, State Government Relations 1983-1986
Manager, lssue Analysis/Communications 1982-1983
Research Analyst/Consultant 1980-1982



UNIVERSITRY OF NEBRASKA OMAHA 1979-1980
The urban campus of the University of Nebraska with over 15,000 students

Graduate Assistant
Coordinated statewide seminar for county government officials and assisted professors in class
preparation for undergraduate classes

YOUNKERS, INC 1975-1979
A regional department store with locations in six mid-western states

Merchandise Manager
Responsible for managing staff, sales and purchasing of merchandise

MEMBERSHIPS/ PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

New Hampshire Commissioner, £ducation Commission of the States
" (Gubernatorial appointment) (ECS)

Immediate Past President and Board Member National Association for Collaborative
Leaders (ACL)

-Delegate, New England Board of Higher Education — Past Chair, NH delegation and
Member of Executive Committee (NEBHE)

Board Member, Campus Compact for New Hampshire (founding member) (CCNH)
Board Member and Treasurer, Granite State Management and Resources

Board and Executive Committee Member: National Association of Independent Colleges
and Universities — State Executives (NAICUSE)

Co-Founder, New Hampshire Forum on the Future — Co-chair of Advisory Committee

Founding Administrator/Board Member/Steering Committee Member, New
Hampshire Scholars

Member/Steering Committee Member, New Hampshire Coalition for Business and
Education

Member, U.S Department of Commerce, District Export Council



Past Advisory Council Member, Governor’s Best Schools Initiative

Past State Board Member, School-to-Work State Commission

Past Board Member, NH Health and Higher Education Finance Authority
Past Chair, Governor’s Youth Council

Past Board Member, New Hampshire Workforce Opportunity Council
Education Leader for the 21st Century, Business New Hampshire Magazine

Champion of Educational Opportunity Award Recipient, New Hampshire Educational
Opportunity Association

Doctorate of Law, Honorary Degree Recipient, Rivier University, 2007

Media & Publications

Author, The Role of the Consortium Director, Best Practices in H/'gher Education
Consortia: How Institutions Can Work Together, josey Bass, 19939.

Author, Leveraging Resources Higher Education for Workforce Development, Leveraging
Resources Through Partnerships, Josey Bass, 2002



Scott C. Power

| AT |

SUMMARY .

Highly skilled business management professional with extensive cxperience in education adminisfration,

including college planning and cvent management. Proven ability to successfully interact with a broad range
of clientele. Excellent organizational and presentation skills that consistently clicit positive feedback from
clients. Personable and adaptable with a strong business sense.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
State Scholars Initiative, The NH College & University Council (NHCUC) 2007 - present
Director, New Hampshire Scholars (2007 — present)

e Lead statewide initiative encouraging high school students to take a rigorous core course of study

* Expanded project from four pilot schools to more than 70 school districts

®  Work closely with school guidance and curriculum coordinators to ensure rigorous courses and
appropriate class options arc available in participating districts

® Lead on-going discussions with NH Department of Education officials and the Governor’s office
pursuing legislative measures to sustain program longevity and success

e Serve as liaison between business partners and school coordinators

* Increased business/community partners from 18 to 400

e Successfully manage a $300,000 federal grant budget

e Effectively write marketing materials, press celeases and grant proposals (RFPs)

® Have established networks with national organizations to bring credibility and distinction to the
success of the program (College Ready New England, College Board, efs)

¢ Coordinate annual convention for New Hampshire Scholar school adnmunisirators and partners
Develop and write nonthly e-newsletter distributed to hundreds of school officials and business
leaders (INH Seholary Seoop)

o  Direct College Access Team as part of the College Access Initiative providing programming and
resources to underserved populations (Access Conventions, ESL Fair, Multicultural Affairs, etc)

®  Successfully manage and coordinate New Hampshire Scholars web site, www.NHscholars.org

®  Work directly with college admissions, carecr directors and Campus Compact for NH on events,
projects and steering committees

Center for College Planning, The NHHEAF Network Organizations 2002 - 2007
Department Manager (2005 ~ 2007)

e Expanded college outreach to 95% of the public high schools in New Hampshice

® Coordinated 450 outreach programs to K-16 communtty in 2006-2007 academic year
(35,000 individuals)

¢ Launched NH’s FAFSA Completion Program as part of National College Goal Sunday canipaign

®  Managed 10 college counselors and 2 part-time assistants. Responsibilities included interviewing,
training, mentoring, and evaluating

¢ Governed an annual $500,000 college planning budget

o Served on NHASFAA’s Finance Committee and Genceral Council (N Association of Student
Financial Aid Administrators)

®  Acted as State Coordinator for NT4CM Program (National Training for Counsclors & Mentors)

s TPerformed as the primary contact for students and their families utilizing scrvices

®  Worked ditectly with college adimission and financial aid counselors on special events, projects and
steering committees

® Developed and led various trainings and workshops for guidance professionals annually

o Produced and implemented an extensive evaluation plan measuring departiment’s ongoing success
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Program Manager (2004 — 2005)

e Increased attendance at annual Desenation College™ conventon from 1,000 ro 1,400 between ‘03-06

. Coofdimred all aspects of this large scale event, including: prescnters, volunteers, moderators,
schedule, sponsors, budget, materials, college €air and registration.

* Wrote and produced monthly college planning e-newsletter distubuted to over 4,000 families and
guidance counselors (Guidance Gasette, Dean's List & Varsity Letler)

¢  Managed and coordinated department’s outreach calendar and counselor schedules

¢ Served as main point of contact for all school districts throughout NI o schedule outreach programs

¢ Led Homeschooling initiative for 3 consecutive years, and hosted annual Homeschool College Fair

College Connselor (2002 ~2004)
e Assisted students & parents with college selection and application process
® Read and critiqued hundreds of college essays
e Performed community outreach presentations at high schools for students and parents
e Skilled in Choiees, ExPan, Access, PowerPoint, Publisher, Excel, Word, Outlook, etc.
o Successfully coordinated Center Jor Coflege Planning IntraNet site

¢ Produced numerous publications and matertals for department

MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS
¢ Member of NHSCA (NH School Counselor Association)
¢  Member of NH Coalition for Business & Education (NFICBE)
a  Serve as ex-officio member of State Scholars Board of Directors
o  Member of NFHCUC College Admission Director Committee
o Member of NCAN (Nat’l College Access Netwark) and EFC (Education Finance Council)
e President of Board of Directors for Fludson Youth Baseball, Hudson, New Hampshire

EDUCATION -
Master of Education, Administration/Supervision
Antioch Univessity New England, Keene, New Flampshire

Bachelor of Arts, Journalism
Associate in Science, Chemical Dependency
Keene State College, I{cene, New Hampshire

RELATED WORK, ACTIVITIES AND INTERESTS
Alvirne High School — Hudson, NH 2002
Baseball Pitching Coach
¢ Proficient in player and personal development; supcrvised academic progress; assisted ia college
planning with upperclassmen. Also work player and coaches camps with Hudson Youth Baseball

Fidelity Investments — Merrimack, NH 2001~ 2002
Associate Service Trader
e Performed customer scrvice in retirement, brokerage, and investment planoing
Northern Essex Community College — Haverhill, MA 1999 - 2001
Athletic _Administrator & Head Baseball Couch
*  Managed entire capacity of baseball program including schedule, budget, travel arrangements,
fundraising, day-to-day operations, recruiting, hiring assistants and student academnic support
Keene State College — Keene, NH 1996 - 1999
Aehletic Administragor & Assistant 1 arsity | Head 17 Coach
¢ Developed first-cver sub-varsity program at eenc State College



